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December 20, 2013  

To All Malibu Middle/High and Juan Cabrillo Elementary School Staff Members and Parents: 

At last week’s Board Study Session, there were teachers and parents who expressed a firm desire that 

instruction be returned to the original classrooms at Malibu High School as soon as possible.  They are 

asking the District to take immediate action to clean dust from those rooms so that teachers and students 

can confidently return after the break.  

We want to honor all teachers’ desires to maximize learning time and minimize disruptions to instruction, 

and in order to return teachers to their classrooms as soon as possible, these steps will be undertaken over 

Winter Break. 

Pre-Testing  

Before the rooms are cleaned using the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) recommended best 

management practices, we will gather air samples from the rooms in the Blue Building that had not been 

previously sampled.  These are rooms 3, 4, 6, 7, 10, 14 and 16.    Additionally, we will gather air samples 

from the gym office adjacent to the girls’ locker room, music rooms 302 and 303 and the storage closet 

adjacent to room 1.  This pre-testing air sampling will take place beginning December 21 through 

December 22, 2013.  This testing will give the District the ability to confirm that the best management 

practices cleaning is effective in reducing PCB concentrations in air and will create a record of current 

conditions in the event any questions arise after the cleaning.  EPA is not requesting this testing; the 

District is undertaking the work to provide further assurances to the community as we return teachers and 

students to the previously vacated classrooms. 

Rooms Cleaned using Best Management Practices 

The District has discussed our cleaning plan with the EPA, Region 9 office, and will utilize the EPA's 

recommended best management to clean the vacated Blue Building, Library, gym office adjacent to the 

girls’ locker room, and the three music rooms over the winter break.  The cleaning will be conducted 

beginning December 23, 2013 and conclude by January 5, 2014.  Although not required, our cleaning 

plan was discussed with, and approved by, the EPA, Region 9 office.        

Post-Cleaning Air and Wipe Sampling  

Post-cleaning air and wipe sampling will be conducted in the five areas that had caulk and/or wipe 

samples that exceeded the regulatory standards.  This testing will take place approximately January 3, 

2014, through January 5, 2014.  The testing protocols and the results will be reviewed/approved by the 

EPA, Region 9.  The District is working directly with Steve Armann, EPA Manager, who was present at 

the Board Study Session last week.  Mr. Armann will personally oversee the review and approval of our 

testing and cleaning protocols, as well as the verification sampling results.  Any questions on our testing 

can be addressed directly with Mr. Armann, who can be reached at (415) 972-3352.  Consistent with the 

pre-testing work described above, we also intend to take post-cleaning air samples in those same rooms, 

which will also be concluded by January 5, 2014. 



 

 

Return to Classrooms   

Teachers may return to their classrooms as soon as the cleaning is completed.  However, the timing of 

when teachers choose to return to their classrooms will be left to the teacher, as we do not want to 

unnecessarily further disrupt instruction.  I will trust and rely on our teachers’ judgment on working out 

that schedule. 

Custodial/Maintenance Staff Training   

We are working with our union leadership to create and deliver the necessary custodial/maintenance staff 

training for EPA best management practices for cleaning and maintenance.  This will be done as soon as 

we can schedule it. I want to thank our employee leadership teams for their cooperation on this matter; 

they have been great. While the EPA has assured me that the rooms are safe to occupy, I believe the 

cleaning will give staff and students the assurances they need.  The collection of post-cleaning testing 

data is being expedited, and, as noted, will be reviewed and approved by the EPA. 

The District seeks to hire an environmental engineering firm to oversee more air and soils testing at our 

Malibu schools, including Juan Cabrillo Elementary School, to help gather the necessary information to 

assure our staff, students and community that our schools are safe.  They will also assist us in developing 

the appropriate plan for any further district assessments. We issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 

last week with a deadline to receive responses by Friday, Dec. 20
th
.  For your information I attach a copy 

of the RFQ (http://smmusd.org/PublicNotices/RequestforQualifications.pdf ).  The responses received by 

the December 20
th
 deadline will be posted on the District’s website.  The engineering firm will develop 

investigation plans under the oversight of, and in collaboration with, the EPA and the California 

Department of Toxic Substances Control. 

In January, 2014, the screening and interview process will begin of the environmental engineering firms 

to determine who shall receive the assignment.   We have asked Task Force members John Sibert and 

Lisa Lambert to serve on the interview panel and they have agreed.  I will provide interview information 

to the full school community. 

 Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Sandra Lyon 

Superintendent 
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